Wednesday, September 15, 2010 hearing on Resolution on an Alcohol Impact Area (AIA) petition to the OLCC – Briefing Memorandum
IMPORTANT- Please read the attached one page summary published by OLCC first.
Frequently Asked Questions:

How were the requirements and boundaries developed by ONI and PPB?

Using reports from Portland Patrol Incorporated to provide data on the characteristics of street drinking, ONI assessed products favored and the supply locations associated with street drinking.  Our proposal is data-driven.
Public input, particularly from licensees, was sought to lessen the impact on stores, small brewers, and operations  not shown in the data to contribute to the problem.  

The OLCC requires a geographic boundary. Initially this was set at the 405 loop but licensees expressed concerns that it was not a material boundary and the areas of the Goose Hollow and Northwest District Neighborhood Associations are shown to have a high concentration of drinking in Public and Detox calls as well.   The boundary was designated to follow the density of both off premise liquor licensed establishments and incidents. 

What are the proposed boundaries?

The Alcohol Impact Area (AIA), has the following geographical designation (see map below): 

The AIA is the area bounded by:

· HWY 26 and HWY 405 on the South, the Willamette River on the East;

· South of NW Lovejoy Street from the Willamette River to NW 9th Ave; 

· West of 9th Ave until W Burnside St; 

· South of West Burnside to I-405 freeway; 

· East of I-405 and South of NW Everett St. until NW 22nd Ave on the North side of Burnside and West of SW Vista Rd on the South side of W Burnside St. 
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Why is a downtown AIA needed?

· Area represents approximately 1% of the Land Area in Portland City Limits

· Area has 58% of all Drinking in Public citations in the City. 

· Area has 30% of Police-initiated detox referrals.  
· Hooper Detox indicates that 60% of admittees come from this area, virtually all of which are alcohol related.   

· These trends go back to year 2000.  

· The regulations that would be enacted in the AIA will affect 43 businesses – a voluntary program was only partially successful.  .

Why was the Voluntary Program, called VIBRANT PDX, not successful?  
· The City attempted to start and manage a voluntary program.  

· This involved 67 meetings with stakeholders, businesses and neighborhood groups.

· Only 9 of the 43 stores agreed to restrict some products for 3 months. Three of those were contingent on 100% participation (from all targeted businesses). 
· Due to the density of liquor licensed locations and the need for 100% participation, the voluntary program failed.
· Some participants reported decreased shoplifting, fights, and conflicts with customers, so there was some measure of success in proving potential benefits. 

What is proposed for restriction in the AIA (see underlined) and why? 
Stores affected by the Alcohol Impact Area:   

All establishments that hold an (OLCC off premises sales license area, subjected to the AIA guidelines with the exception of the following types of businesses:   

a) Those that operate as a gift shop with no street entrance;

b) Those that also hold a full on premises or limited on premises liquor license; or 

c) Those that operate as a wine store where wine represents over 50% of the inventory.

· Ninety five percent (95%) of incidents within these boundaries were associated with alcoholic beverages purchased at off premises licensed locations that operate as a market/convenience store or as a market/grocery store. Therefore, the requirements of the proposed AIA exclude premises with off premises liquor licenses that are not market operations. 

Malt Beverages: 

Licensee will not sell single containers of malt beverages 

EXCEPTION: This does not apply to beverages in 22-24 ounce glass bottles brewed by breweries that fall under the Federal Definition of a Small Brewery for tax purposes under Section 5051(a) (2) of Title 26 U.S.C.
Licensee will not sell packages of multiple malt beverages that are larger than 12 ounces per container, or packaged in less than 4 items per package
· Seventy five percent (75%) of the beverages consumed on the street are in 16-24 ounce containers. Twenty four ounce (24 oz) containers are sold as single containers and make up over 40% of sales associated with drinking in public.  
· Malt beverages produced as microbrews or specialty beers were evident in only 2% of the incidents.
Licensee will not sell malt beverages over 5.75% alcohol by volume (ABV).
EXCEPTION: This does not apply to beverages produced by breweries that fall under the Federal Definition of a Small Brewery for tax purposes under Section 5051(a) (2) of Title 26 U.S.C.
· Alcoholic beverages under 5.75% ABV make up only 23.3% of total incidents, 70% of those incidents involved containers 16 ounces or larger (Table 3). 
· Malt beverages produced as microbrews or specialty beers were evident in only 2% of the incidents.
Wines:  

Licensee will not sell wine over 14 % ABV
· In drinking in public incidents that involve wine, the wine is reported to be over 13.5% ABV approximately 83% of the time.   We raised the level to 14% ABV from the OLCC’s standard restriction of 13.8% ABV. 
Licensee will not sell wine packaged in a removable bladder or flexible soft package

· Analysis also shows that over 69% of the street drinking incidents involving wine over 13.5% ABV also involve wine in a box/flexible bladder.  

Licensee will not sell wine in quantities greater than 2 liters per package
· Many specialty wines are over 13.5% but are not sold in large quantities as those seen consumed on the street. Very few wines are over 14% unless they are fortified wines, which are products known to be problematic by the OLCC in incidents of street drinking.  
Why not restrict specific products rather than categories of beverages?
Washington AIAs restricted specific products, which were re-named and placed back on the shelf within a few months. New products targeted toward cheap and quick intoxication are continuously entering the market. For instance in March, Mike’s Hard Lemonade introduced a Mike’s Harder Lemonade with 8.1% ABV in 24 ounce containers. This product fits the profile for products favored on the street, but would not have been on the list and is most certainly not on Washington’s lists. Washington has since stated their intention to move to requirements in their AIA’a that are based on Alcohol by Volume and Container Size. 

The intention of the implementation of an Alcohol Impact Area is to lessen the stresses on law enforcement and neighborhood resources that the concentration of this problem causes. Having to continually revisit and revise the list would not attain that goal.
What about displacement?
Anecdotally there have been some reports that individuals have come into downtown to purchase these products, as they are more available there than in other neighborhoods. Independent evaluations of the AIAs in Washington have not shown a problem with displacement. The market stores immediately surrounding the boundary can be addressed through individual (voluntary) means because the density is lower. 

Does this affect Sidewalk Cafés?
No, the AIA does not address sidewalk cafés. A sidewalk café is considered to be part of the bar or restaurant that it is associated with, and the licensee is accountable for the service of alcohol that occurs within the sidewalk café. Alcohol is not permitted outside the boundary and licensees face violation citations if their patrons exit the area with alcohol. 

Does the AIA address distilled spirits? How will liquor stores be held accountable? 
· The AIA does not address distilled spirits, because distilled spirits are not sold at locations licensed for retail. Also, distilled spirits are associated with only 2% of the overall incidents of Drinking in Public in this area. 

· Liquor stores are under different rules as they act as agents of the OLCC. There are strict requirements about how many can be in a given locality. The proposed area houses only two liquor stores. If an increase is seen in distilled spirits consumption on the street, it will not take an extraordinary amount of resources to address the problem with those two locations. 
Process and changes to the language at this point?

· This resolution is a required step in the process to getting a petition to OLCC for their consideration and approval.  I am asking the Council to approve the principle and research findings of the AIA and move it forward to the OLCC.
· Changes made at this point, before the petition is accepted, could potentially set the process back by months.  If Council desires changes in the specific elements (boundaries, products, alcohol content, volume, etc.), a separate memorandum listing potential amendments to the proposal could be forwarded along with the petition.
· The rule making process at the OLCC is designed to include all stakeholder input; and changes could potentially happen there.   OLCC makes the final decisions about what is in the AIA, if they approve one.
· If changes are warranted, I request we include them as an addendum recommending further discussion in the OLCC hearing process. 
· The proposed rule language is not necessarily what the OLCC will adopt, although our research indicates it would be most effective while still minimizing impacts on the business community. 
If you have further questions, please contact Theresa Marchetti in the Office of Neighborhood Involvement at 823-3092.  
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